

TECHNOLOGY WHITE PAPER

Correlating SDN overlays and the physical network with Nuage Networks Virtualized Services Assurance Platform



## Abstract

Enterprises are expanding their private clouds and extending network virtualization within and across their datacenter and wide area environments. But their progress is impeded because they do not have clear and timely correlations between programmable Software Defined Network (SDN) overlays and the physical underlay.

Enterprise IT operations groups need tools that help them understand the IP network that supports the multitenant virtual workloads within and across their networks.

Nuage Networks<sup>™</sup> Virtualized Services Assurance Platform (VSAP) gives enterprise IT operations groups the network visibility and troubleshooting tools needed to operate and manage virtual networks. Now, if a link goes down in the multivendor physical underlay network, IT operations staff know precisely which applications, services and virtual machines are affected so they can quickly take action.



## CONTENTS

- 1 The management challenge in software defined networks
- 2 Addressing SDN management challenges with Nuage Networks VSAP
- 3 Network infrastructure management
- 3 Network and service assurance
- 3 Virtualized services creation and provisioning
- 3 Route analytics and assurance
- 5 Network monitoring to improve visibility and fault management
- 6 Lightweight Services to improve service assurance and awareness
- 8 Event retrieval log and correlation
- 8 BGP event correlation
- 9 Overlay and underlay fault correlation
- 11 Statistics collection and plotting
- 11 Statistics collection
- 12 Statistics plotting
- 12 Summary
- 13 Abbreviations

# The management challenge in software defined networks

Historically, network connectivity has taken a relatively long time to plan and implement. And, once configured on the network, connectivity tends to stay in the same state for a long time because modifications also require long planning and deployment timelines.

However, Software Defined Network (SDN) connections are by nature dynamic. SDN service turn-up and modification times are measured in minutes, not in days or months. In an SDN overlay network:

- Connectivity provisioning is handled in the control plane rather than the management plane.
- Services are provisioned with little or no requirement to understand the underlying network infrastructure or topology.
- Service endpoints can move at a moment's notice, for example when a virtual machine (VM) compute resource needs to be upgraded to deliver more bandwidth or functionality.

This new agility means management applications need to provide feature-rich fault management so enterprise IT operations staff can quickly identify issues within the network domain. The challenge is for fault management functions to distinguish between faults that reside on the network infrastructure and those that occur on the compute side of the service deployment.

NETWORK MANAGEMENT CHALLENGE	NETWORK VISIBILITY NEEDED
Keep pace with rapidly changing services	Dynamic directory of current and historical virtual services
Proactively detect emerging service issues	Real-time monitoring and troubleshooting
Easily pinpoint issues to their root cause	Comprehensive SDN overlay and physical underlay network correlation
Prevent issue reoccurrence	Virtual service diagnostics and heuristics

#### TABLE 1. SDNs bring management challenges

Once a fault is detected, the management application must try to correlate that fault to other objects in the service path. It would be a fairly simple task for a management application that is monitoring a single domain — a pure SDN or pure traditional physical network — to provide this feature. The real challenge is when the management application must provide the correlation between virtual and physical domains.

With the dynamic nature of SDN services, the possibility of transitory faults increases. Because virtualized objects such as virtual machines can be turned up, turned off, or moved as service requirements change, faults may be there one moment and gone the next.

In traditional networks, transitory faults are easily dealt with by keeping a historical database that links the fault to a physical object. However, in the virtualized world, that object may no longer exist, or it may have moved. That means the management application must know the state of the dynamic virtual objects and correlate them to the physical world where they are used.

This white paper provides an overview of the key functions provided by the Nuage Networks<sup>™</sup> Virtualized Services Assurance Platform (VSAP). And it explains how these functions help to simplify SDN operations and management by correlating virtualized overlay services with the operational state of the physical underlay network.

## Addressing SDN management challenges with Nuage Networks VSAP

The Nuage Networks VSAP provides a comprehensive suite of tools to fault-find the physical and SDN networks so that the challenges described above are met.

The Nuage Networks VSAP includes network monitoring and troubleshooting features that provide advanced visibility and fault management for the SDN datacenter and the wide area network. Now this next-generation fault management application, which is based on the JBoss Drools Business Rules Management System (BRMS) solution, also provides advanced root cause analysis for SDN objects.

Network operators can see the paths between virtualized objects, tracing routes across the underlay resources. And, with the application's ability to retain faults and correlated alarms, operators can easily pinpoint historical network issues and determine whether the fault is in the compute network or the network underlay.

Building on these key functions, the Nuage Networks VSAP provides integrated element, network, and service operations management for advanced network solutions. The main network management operations include:

- Element management with fault, configuration, accounting, performance, security (FCAPS) functionality.
- Network infrastructure management, service provisioning, scripting and service management.
- Network and service assurance, including topology views and operations and maintenance (OAM) diagnostic testing.
- RESTful application programming interface (API) integration to external applications.

FIGURE 1. The Nuage Networks VSAP offers key network management functions

Correlation Engine	<ul> <li>Aggregates virtual and physical topologies</li> <li>Correlates services</li> <li>Analyzes faults</li> <li>Provides remediation actions</li> </ul>
Route Monitor	<ul> <li>Uses standard routing protocols</li> <li>Peers with networks</li> <li>Discovers topologies based on OSPF, ISIS, iBGP, eBGP</li> </ul>

#### Element management and correlation

In a datacenter and Software Defined Wide Area Network (SD-WAN) context, the Nuage Networks VSAP provides element management functionality for the:

- Nuage Networks 7850 Virtualized Services Gateway (VSG)
- Nuage Networks 7850 Virtualized Services Aggregator (VSA)
- Nuage Networks 7850 Network Services Gateway (NSG)
- Virtualized Services Controller (VSC) component in the Nuage Networks Virtualized Services Platform (VSP)

Each of these offerings can be discovered and managed by the Nuage Networks VSAP, as can network elements running the Nokia Service Router Operating System (SR 0S).

The virtual components, such as virtual switches (vSwitches) and virtual ports (vPorts), can be configured with statistics collection and modeled within the same element management database. This enables correlation with element management functionality including:

- Network element backup and restore
- Equipment configuration and status monitoring
- Performance statistics collection
- Threshold-crossing alarms

#### Network infrastructure management

Network infrastructure management features in the Nuage Networks VSAP include support for service creation and management. Network infrastructure management is extended to provide support for virtualized service management, including:

- Manual and scripted service provisioning
- Policy-based services management

#### Network and service assurance

Network and service assurance features include support for:

- Topology maps
- Alarm management
- Service testing and troubleshooting
- Performance management

For SDN resources, these assurance features include topology maps for virtual network objects and virtualized services, as well as alarms that are unique to those objects. Network and service assurance functionality includes:

- Dynamic physical and virtual service topology maps
- Alarm filtering and correlation
- Statistics collection and plotting

#### Virtualized services creation and provisioning

The Virtualized Services Directory (VSD) component in the Nuage Networks VSP is a policy-based system that can be used to create virtualized services and provision them on the SDN elements.

The VSD communicates directly to the network elements for which the Nuage Networks VSAP discovers virtualized network and service objects. The Nuage Networks VSAP integrates these objects into the IP underlay network view for event correlation and other functionality. It uses the Simple Network Management Protocol (SNMP) to discover and monitor the SDN and physical components through the VSC component.

#### Route analytics and assurance

The Nuage Networks VSAP provides real-time Interior Gateway Protocol (IGP) and Border Gateway Protocol (BGP) topology capture, inspection, visualization and troubleshooting.

The solution retrieves routing data from its Route Monitor function and aggregates it for route analytics and assurance functionality. This functionality gives network operators visibility and mappings for virtualized services and their related components. It extends:

- Reachability event correlation functionality to virtual objects and enables historical impact and root cause analysis for associated faults.
- BGP reachability analysis to virtualized services and stores a log of reachability information.

The Route Monitor function is based on the Nokia 7701 virtualized Control Plane Assurance Appliance (vCPAA) product. The 7701 vCPAA provides analysis in a distributed computing platform and uses a passive version of the industry-tested and proven SR OS routing code. As a result, the Route Monitor provides a high degree of interoperability with customer networks, acting as a routing element that passively peers with the network. The main functions of the Route Monitor are to:

- Monitor routing data from the routing protocols that are running on it.
- Provide route calculation for routes passing through the routing areas for which it is responsible.
- Perform routing analysis and provide the results to the Nuage Networks VSAP so network-wide reports or alarms can be generated.



FIGURE 2. Nuage Networks VSAP connects to the SDN and the physical network

## Network monitoring to improve visibility and fault management

The infrastructure layer of Nuage Networks VSAP includes network monitoring and troubleshooting features that provide advanced visibility and fault management for the SDN. Operations staff can quickly find the path to the associated Virtualized Services Controller for any VM or vSwitch in the network. They can then graphically highlight the path and assign IP path monitors. Historical faults and alarms are retained so staff can monitor historical changes on a path between a physical router and a virtual component.

IGP topology features let operations staff map and monitor datacenter network infrastructure. Topology maps display real-time network topology information for a designated IGP administrative domain. They provide a color-coded interface that shows a visual representation of routers, paths and virtual objects within the specified IGP administrative domain. Map highlighting can be used to view:

- Layer 2 and Layer 3 services
- Composite services
- Service tunnels
- Shortest Path First (SPF) and Constrained Shortest Path First (CSPF) routes
- OAM diagnostics results on IGP maps

In an SDN, map highlighting is most useful for mapping paths from a VM or vSwitch to an associated SDN controller or a Provider Edge (PE) router. As shown in the example below, highlighting the SPF from a virtual object to a PE router reveals the mapping between the virtual object and the network underlay.

FIGURE 3. Visual traces between SDN elements map virtual objects with the network underlay



IP path monitors can be used to monitor the route between routers. When there is a network topology change, such as a link metric or a state change, the system evaluates whether the routes of registered paths are affected:

- If routes are affected, new routes are recorded by the Route Monitor.
- If there is no route for a monitored path after a topology change, a record is logged.
- If there is a change in the SPF calculation based on a topology change, the change is recorded.

Highlighting shows current versus historical paths, including their respective costs.

## Lightweight Services to improve service assurance and awareness

The Nuage Networks VSAP provides SDN services, called Lightweight Services, to improve awareness and assurance in virtualized services management. These Lightweight Services offer opportunities for service object persistence to accommodate the constant deletion and creation of service objects as VMs move within the network. As a result:

- Event retrieval and correlation features are extended to persisted service objects and datacenter-specific events.
- BGP virtual private network (VPN) route analytics are extended to virtualized services. This provides assurance and troubleshooting for distributed Virtual Routing and Switching (VRS) and Ethernet VPN (EVPN) service objects.

The example below shows the user interface that lets operators view historical BGP events pertaining to a particular service context for a specified period. Operators can assess these events to quickly determine the reason for historical service interruptions or failures.

FIGURE 4. Historical event retrieval for VMs helps operators troubleshoot service interruptions

Pessitence autore											
And the second second second											2451
VSD Organization Name   Stlanx		ų.		_	_	_	_	_	_		57
main	47.9.10	Virtual Port Uni	densy Ping Test								
rganization Domain Name	Туря										F. 9.
		Functional State	Reachability State	IPsec	Name	Port.Type	Virtual Machin	w Name RA	ddness.	Virtual Machine UUID	
nli SBankComain	8										
nk SBankL2Domain	12	E3			Host-VRSG-300	Host	N/A	10.0	8.67.123	N/A	
			6		Bridge-Vport-330	Bridge	N/A	N/A		N/A	
		<b>C</b>			Arista-V400-Bridge	Bridge	N/A	N/A		N/A	
		0	13		001902228144	VM	Demo_VM_LZ	_03 10.6	8.67.3	52558A15-1E32-4C4D-8838-9	11C72C7744
		E			001902222244	VM	Demo_VM_L3	_04 10.0	8.67.41	52558A15-1E32-4C4D-8838-9	1107209244
					DEADSF847775	VM	Demo_L3_VM	_05 10.6	8.67.221	26879983-6835-56E1-9401-54	3091FCC608
		E			001902228114	VM	Demo_VM_L3	_01 10.0	8.67.183	\$2558A15-1E32-4C4D-8838-9	1107200514
		1				1164317	Los constantes				
and the second se											
Alarma Historical Events vent Retrieval Time Interval : 2/17/	2016, 1:34:24 PM - 2/17/2016	.2:34:24 PM 🞏								5	7 R Q
Varms Historical Events In vent Retrieval Time Interval : 2/17/ Event Time *	2016, 1:34:24 PM - 2/17/2016 StelD	.2:34:24 PM		Correlation	n State C	ause Code	Source Object *	- General		Ē	<b>7</b> Q
Narma Historical Events In vent Retrieval Time Interval : 2/17/ Event Time *	2016, 1:34:24 PM - 2/17/2016 Ste D	.2:34:24 РМ 🐷 Туре		Correlation	n Støbe C	ause Code	Source Object. *	- General		E	2 % Q
Varms Historical Events vent Retrieval Time Interval : 2/17/ Event Time * 2016/02/17 14:32:04 390 -08:00	2016, 1:34:24 PM - 2/17/2016 Ste ID GMT 35:227:229.122	. 2:34:24 PM 💭 Type DC: Vpor	t Up	Correlation	n State C	ause Code onfiguration Change	Source Object *	<ul> <li>General</li> <li>General</li> <li>Event Time</li> </ul>		2010/02/17 16 26 17 266	R R Q
Marma Historical Events vent Retrieval Time Interval : 2/17/ Event Time * 2016/02/17 14:32:04 390-08:00 2016/02/17 14:31:59 786-08:00	2016, 1:34:24 PM - 2/17/2016 Site ID GMT 35,227,229,122 GMT 35,227,229,122	2:34:24 PM Type DC: Vpor DC: VM U	t Up P	Correlation Operations Operations	n State C al Di al Ci	ause Code onfiguration Change onfiguration Change	Source Object * vp-DEAD5FB477 _ vm-S2558A15-1E	<ul> <li>General</li> <li>General</li> <li>Event Time :</li> </ul>		2016/02/17 14:26:17 986	2 7- Q
Historical Events           Historical Events           Henri Retrieval Time Interval           Event Time *           2016/02/17 14:31:59 785-08:00           2016/02/17 14:31:59 785-08:00	2016, 1:34:24 PM - 2/17/2016 Sike IO GMT 35.227.229.122 GMT 35.227.229.122 GMT 35.227.229.122	2:34:24 PM Type DC: Vpon DC: VM U DC: VM U	t Up P P	Correlation Operations Operations	n State C al Cu al Cu al Cu	ause Code onfiguration Change onfiguration Change onfiguration Change	Source Object * vp-DEADS/B477 vm-S2358A15-1E vm-S2558A15-1E	<ul> <li>General</li> <li>General</li> <li>Event Time :</li> <li>Event Type :</li> </ul>		2010/92/17 14:26:17 966- BGP: Prefix Down	2 7- Q
Marma         Historical Events           vents Recreaval Time indexval :         2/17/           Events Time *         2016/02/17 14:31:50 786-0800           2016/02/17 14:31:50 785-0800         2016/02/17 14:31:50 785-0800	2016, 1:34-24 PM - 2/17/2016 Stel D GMT 35.227,229.122 GMT 35.227,229.122 GMT 35.227,229.122 GMT 35.227,229.122	2:34:24 PM	cup p p	Correlation Operations Operations Operations	n State C al C al C al C al C al C al C	ause Code onfiguration Change onfiguration Change onfiguration Change onfiguration Change	Source Object * vp-DEAD57B477 _ vm-5255B415-1E vm-5255B415-1E vm-2E879183-88	<ul> <li>General</li> <li>General</li> <li>Event Time :</li> <li>Event Type :</li> <li>Data Center :</li> </ul>		2016/92/17 142617 986- BGP: Prefix Down dctrMgrdczr1	08:00 GMT
Approx         Historical Events         2/17/           event Retrieval Time         2/17/           Event Time         2/16/02/17 14:32:04 390 .08:00           2916/02/17 14:31:59 786 .08:00         2916/02/17 14:31:59 785 .08:00           2916/02/17 14:31:59 785 .08:00         2916/02/17 14:31:59 785 .08:00           2916/02/17 14:31:59 785 .08:00         2916/02/17 14:31:59 785 .08:00	2016, 1:34-24 PM - 2/17/2016 Site ID GMT 35.227,229.122 GMT 35.227,229.122 GMT 35.227,229.122 GMT 35.227,229.122 GMT 35.227,229.122	2:34:24 PM	t Up ip ip ip ip al Switch Up	Correlation Operations Operations Operations Operations Operations	n State C M C M C M C M C M C M C M C	aine Code onfiguration Change onfiguration Change onfiguration Change onfiguration Change	Source Object * vp-DEAD5FB477 _ vm-52358415-1E vm-7287981-54 vsw-29	<ul> <li>General</li> <li>General</li> <li>Event Time :</li> <li>Event Type :</li> <li>Data Center :</li> <li>Alarm :</li> </ul>		2016/02/11 1×20:11 986- BGP: Prefix Down dcm/kgrdar-1 unspecified	08:00 GMT 2
Marmin         Historical Events           versi: Recrieval Time interval:         2/17/           Event Time *         2016/02/17 14:32:04 390.08:00           2016/02/17 14:31:59 786-08:00         2016/02/17 14:31:59 786-08:00           2016/02/17 14:31:59 786-08:00         2016/02/17 14:31:59 786-08:00           2016/02/17 14:31:59 786-08:00         2016/02/17 14:31:59 786-08:00	2016, 1:34:24 PM - 2/17/2016 Site ID 55:207.229, 1:22 GMT 55:227.229, 1:22 GMT 55:227.229, 1:22 GMT 55:227.229, 1:22 GMT 55:227.229, 1:22	2:34:24 PM Type DC: Vpen DC: VM U DC: VSwi	t Ub ip ip ip el Switch Ub tch Controller Up	Correlation Operations Operations Operations Operations Operations Operations	n State C M	ause Code onfiguration Change onfiguration Change onfiguration Change onfiguration Change onfiguration Change	Source Object * vp-DEAD5FB477 _ vm-5255B415-1E vm-52555B415-1E vm-52555B415-1E vm-52555B415-1E vm-525555	<ul> <li>General</li> <li>General</li> <li>Event Time :</li> <li>Event Type :</li> <li>Data Center :</li> <li>Alarm :</li> <li>DC : BCP Profile :</li> </ul>		2016/92/17 14:26:17 966- BGP: Prefix Down dictrigradio-1 unspec/Red dictrigradio-1-laticipricPlappi-1	2 7 Q
Maternal Time and Events           Peter References         Time and Events           Event Time *         2016/02/17 14:31:59 786-0000           2016/02/17 14:31:59 786-0000         2016/02/17 14:31:59 785-0000           2016/02/17 14:31:59 783-0000         2016/02/17 14:31:59 783-0000           2016/02/17 14:31:59 783-0000         2016/02/17 14:31:59 783-0000           2016/02/17 14:31:57 783-0000         2016/02/17 14:31:57 783-0000	2014, 134/24 PM - 2/17/2016 SRE (D GMT 35.227.229.122 GMT 35.227.229.122 GMT 35.227.229.122 GMT 35.227.229.122 GMT 35.227.229.122 GMT 35.227.229.122 GMT 35.227.229.122 GMT 35.227.229.122	2:34:24 PM	t Up Ip Ip al Switch Up Ich Conkroller Up Int Down	Correlation Operations Operations Operations Operations Operations Here failure	n State C M D M C M C M C M C M C M C M C M C M C M C	aue Code onfiguration Change onfiguration Change onfiguration Change onfiguration Change onfiguration Change specified	Source Object * vp-DEADS/B4177 vm-52558A15-1E vm-52558A15-1E vm-7287988-68 vsw-79 vsttf-1 10(68.57.3	<ul> <li>General</li> <li>General</li> <li>Event Type :</li> <li>Data Center :</li> <li>Alarm :</li> <li>DC: BCP Profile :</li> <li>DC Donain :</li> </ul>		2016/92/17 1+226-17 996- BGP: Prefix Joann dctMgr.dctr-1 urspecTed dctMgr.dctr-1.dctprefBgppt-1 SBarkDomán	2 7 Q
Jamm         Historical Events           merri Recreasel Time Interval:         2/17/           Event Time *         2016/02/17 14:32:04 390.08:00           2016/02/17 14:31:59 785-08:00         2016/02/17 14:31:59 785-08:00           2016/02/17 14:31:59 783-08:00         2016/02/17 14:31:59 733-08:00           2016/02/17 14:31:59 733-08:00         2016/02/17 14:31:59 733-08:00           2016/02/17 14:31:59 732-08:00         2016/02/17 14:31:59 733-08:00           2016/02/17 14:32:157 7186-08:00         2016/02/17 14:26:17 186-08:00	2014, 134-24 PM - 2/17/2016 Site ID EXE ID E	23424PM	t Up P P II Switch Up tch Costroller Up Followin	Correlation Operations Operations Operations Operations Operations Hard Failur Hard Failur	n State C M	aue Code onfiguration Change onfiguration Change onfiguration Change onfiguration Change onfiguration Change specified specified	Source Object * vp-DEADSFIB477 vm-52556A15-1E vm-7287980-68 vsw-20 vstr5-1 10 665723 10 6667741	General     General     Event Time :     Event Type :     Data Center :     Alarm :     Dc Bochaine :     GC Donaine :     G3 Service Id :		2016/02/17 14/26/17 986- BCP/Pr/IX Down dcaMgridar-1 umper/ied dcatelogradar-1 sBainbornin 2006/0 2006/0	08:00 GMT
Memm         Historical Events           verti. Recrieval Time interval:         2/17/           Event Time *         2016/02/17 14:32:04 390 0:00:00           2016/02/17 14:31:59 786-08:00         2016/02/17 14:31:59 786-08:00           2016/02/17 14:31:59 786-08:00         2016/02/17 14:31:59 783-08:00           2016/02/17 14:31:57 723:30:00         2016/02/17 14:31:57 723:30:00           2016/02/17 14:31:57 723:30:00         2016/02/17 14:31:57 723:30:00           2016/02/17 14:21:57 16:30:00         2016/02/17 14:21:57 16:30:00	2016, 134/24 9M - 2/17/2016 Ster ID CMT 35.227.229.122 CMT 35.227.299.122 CMT 35.277.299.122 CMT 35.277.2	23424 PM	t Ub p p p b s b s b s b c b c c b c c b c c c c c	Correlation Operations Operations Operations Operations Operations Hard Fallur Hard Fallur	nSiate C H	aue Code onfiguration Change onfiguration Change onfiguration Change onfiguration Change onfiguration Change specified specified	Source Object vp-DEAD5/B417 - vm-52558415-12 vm-72847948-64 vwe2/ vwe2/ vwe2/ 106.64.74 106.86.74 106.86.74	General     General     Event Time :     Event Type :     Data Center :     Alarm :     DC : BCP Poolile     DC Donsin:     L3 Service Id:     Z Service Id:		2016/92/17 14:26:17 956- BGP; Prefix Down dcxNgrddor-1 unspec/fied dcxNgrddat-1dctsprof-bgpp-1 SBa-kDomán 20040	08:00 GMT
Historical Events           extr. Recrease Time intervoit:         2/17/           Event Time *         2016/02/17 14-31-59 786-0800           2016/02/17 14-31-59 786-0800         2016/02/17 14-31-59 783-0800           2016/02/17 14-31-59 783-0800         2016/02/17 14-31-59 733-0800           2016/02/17 14-31-59 733-0800         2016/02/17 14-31-59 733-0800           2016/02/17 14-31-59 733-0800         2016/02/17 14-31-59 733-0800           2016/02/17 14-31-59 733-0800         2016/02/17 14-31-59 733-0800	2015, 134/24 PM - 2/17/2016 Ske ID Ske ID CMT 55.227,229,122 CMT 55.227,229,122 CMT 55.227,229,122 CMT 55.227,229,122 CMT 55.227,229,122 CMT 55.227,229,122 CMT 55.227,229,122 CMT 55.227,229,122 CMT 55.227,229,122 CMT 55.227,229,122	234/24 PM	t Up p p al Switch Up at Oown Tk Down Tk Down Tk Down	Correlation Operations Operations Operations Operations Operations Hard Fallur Hard Fallur Hard Fallur	nState C di C di C di C di C di C di C di C di	aine Code onfiguration Change onfiguration Change onfiguration Change onfiguration Change onfiguration Change specified specified onfiguration Change	Source Object * wp DEAD5/IM17 wm 52558415-11 wm 52558415-11 wm 527398-34 wm 527398-34 wm 527398-34 wst/f-1 1068.67.41 1068.67.41 1068.67.21 wp 00190222228	Ceneral     Ceneral     Event Time :     Event Time :     Event Type :     Data Canter :     Data Canter :     DC : BCP Profile :     DC Donain :     L3 Service Id :     L2 Service Id :     BCP A5 :		2016/02/11 14/26:11 996- BGP: Prifis Down dcthNgr.dct-1 unspecfied dcthNgr.dct-1dctprof/bppp-1 SBak/Domde 20040 5100	2 7. Q
Jamm         Historical Events           writ Recrueval Time Interval :         2/17/           Event Time *         2016/02/17 14-31-59 786-508:00           2016/02/17 14-31-59 786-508:00         2016/02/17 14-31-59 783-508:00           2016/02/17 14-31-59 783-508:00         2016/02/17 14-31-59 783-508:00           2016/02/17 14-31-59 783-508:00         2016/02/17 14-31-59 783-508:00           2016/02/17 14-28-17 786         0.000           2016/02/17 14-28-17 786         0.000           2016/02/17 14-28-17 786         0.000           2016/02/17 14-28-17 786         0.000           2016/02/17 14-28-17 786         0.000           2016/02/17 14-28-17 786         0.000           2016/02/17 14-28-17 786         0.000           2016/02/17 14-28-17 786         0.000           2016/02/17 14-28-17 786         0.000           2016/02/17 14-28-17 786         0.000           2016/02/17 14-28-17 786         0.000           2016/02/17 14-28-17 786         0.000           2016/02/17 14-28-17 786         0.000           2016/02/17 14-28-17 786         0.000           2016/02/17 14-28-17 786         0.000           2016/02/17 14-28-17 786         0.000	2016, 124/24 PM - 2/17/2016 Ske () CMT 55.227.229.122 CMT 55.227.229.122	2.3424PM	t Up p p d Swith Up d Swith Up fix Down fix Down fix Down to Down t Down	Correlation Operations Operations Operations Operations Operations Hard Failur Hard Failur Hard Failur Hard Failur	n State C	aise Code onfiguration Change onfiguration Change onfiguration Change onfiguration Change onfiguration Change opportied opportied opportied opportied onfiguration Change onfiguration Change	Seurce Object * +p-DLAD2/B477 _ +m-52556415-E +m-52556415-E +m-5227985-84 +m-22795-84 +m-2275-84 +m-	General     General     Veneral     Event Time :     Event Type :     Data Childre :     Alarm :     DC: BCD Poolile :     DC Donain:     L3 Service Id:     L3 Service Id:     BCP AS :     Baa Confederation	0.	2016/02/17 14/26:17 996- BCP: Prefix Down dorthgrador-1 umsserfied dotningerdan-1.dictoproFlagon-1 StankDomain 20040 5100 0	2 7. Q
Historical Events           Vertil: Referenceal Time antervoir:         2/17/           Event: Time: *         2016/02/17 14:31:59 786-0000           2016/02/17 14:31:59 786-0000         2016/02/17 14:31:59 786-0000           2016/02/17 14:31:59 786-0000         2016/02/17 14:31:59 786-0000           2016/02/17 14:31:59 783-0000         2016/02/17 14:31:59 733-0000           2016/02/17 14:22:17 14:06-000         2016/02/17 14:22:17 378-0000           2016/02/17 14:22:17 378-0000         2016/02/17 14:22:3773 00:00           2016/02/17 14:22:3773 00:00         2016/02/17 14:22:3773 00:00	2015, 134/24 PM - 2/17/2016 Site (D 2015, 134/24 PM - 2/17/2016 Site (D 2017) 2017 2017) 2017 2017 2017) 2017 2017 2017) 2017 2017 2017) 2017 2017 2017) 2017 2017 2017) 2017 20	2:34:24 PM	t Up p p el switch Up ch Costroller Up th Oren th Dawn to Dawn Down to Down	Correlation Operations Operations Operations Operations Hard Failur Hard Failur Hard Failur Hard Failur	nSiate C d G d G d G d G d G d G d G d G d G d G	aine Code onfiguration Change onfiguration Change onfiguration Change onfiguration Change onfiguration Change specified reperfiled onfiguration Change onfiguration Change onfiguration Change	Surre Object wp DEAD5/Ib477 wm 52554615F1 wm 52554615F1 wm 52545415F1 wm 52545415F1 106647.23 106647.23 106647.24 106647.24 wp 05010522224 wp 050105284477 wp 050105284477 wp 05010528447	General     General     Work Type:     Duca Center:     Duca Center:     Alarm:     DC: BC2 MonBile     DC Donain:     L3 Service Id:     L3 Service Id:     BCP A5:     Bgc Confederation     Bore Mains	m;	2016/02/11 14:26:17 956- BGP: Prefix Dean dctr/kgrdd:r-1 urspecified dctr/kgrdd:st-1dctrprofhgppi-1 StenkDomain 20090 5100 0 5100 0	9850 GMT

The Route Monitor BGP functionality provides a full view of the SDN and associated WAN routing. It supports multivendor topology views through dynamic discovery of IGP and BGP routing contexts. These views are combined with the vSwitch and VM mappings derived from virtual node (vNode) discovery to create a complete mapping of the network underlay to the network overlay. The Route Monitor also automatically monitors virtual services as they relate to the VM and vPort state. BGP reachability analysis allows operators to monitor the BGP state for VMs and network elements in the SDN.

The Service Navigator user interface, shown below, allows network operators to list virtual services. Selecting a service from the list provides operators with visibility into the functional state of the VMs associated with the service and VM reachability within the service context. Other BGP VPN features, such as map highlighting, can be used to associate and map virtual objects to the network underlay.

#### FIGURE 5. The SDN Service Navigator Dashboard increases visibility into VM state and reachability

VSAF	- Service Navigato	or							User: admin 🛨
Assurance	Audit								
Q, VSD Organizat	ion Name   SBank								
Domain		4 7. Q 10	Virtual Port Un	derlas Ping Test					
Organization	Domais Name	Туре							5 F. Q. @
		1	Functional State	Reachability State	IPsec Name	Port Type	Virtual Machi	ne Name PAddress	Virtual Machine UUID
SBank	SBankDomain	13							
SBank	SBankL2Domain	12			Host-VRSG-30	IO Host	N/A	10.68.67.123	N/A
				B	Bridge-Vport-	330 Bridge	N/A	N/A	N/A
				13	Arista-V400-8	ridae Bridae	N/A	N/A	N/A
				53	00190222814	4 VM	Demo VM L2	03 10.68.67.3	52558A15-1E32-4C4D-8838-9F11C72C7744
					00190222224	4 VM	Demo_VM_L3	04 10.68.67.41	S2558A15-1E32-4C4D-8838-9F11C72C9244
					DEAD5F8477	75 VM	Demo_L3_VM	05 10.68.67.221	2E879983-6835-56E1-5401-543091FCC608
					00190222811	4 VM	Demo_VM_L3	01 10.68.67.183	52558A15-1E32-4C4D-8838-9F11C72C0514
				53	00190222221	4 VM	Demo_VM_L3	02 10.68.67.158	52558A15-1E32-4C4D-8B38-9F11C72C9514
2016/02/17 14:33	44 940 -08:00 GMT	Count : 2	* 2016/02/17 14:34	00 161 -08:00 GMT					P Count: B
Alarms Hi	storical Events								
alarm List									7- Q @
Severity	Site ID	Site Name	Alar	med Object Type	Alarmed Object Name	Alarm Name	Probable Cause	Last Time Detected	> General
	*								> Severity
				Na	terns to show				Acknowledgemere.
									> Acknowledgement Notes
								Statistics	
								- Durrinting	
									- PORTAGE
									- Remedial Action
4.8									
C Auto Refresh	ng. 2016/02/17 17:03:4	8 050 -08:00 GMT						Countin	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

### Network object persistence

Virtual service objects, such as VMs and vPort endpoints, are inherently mobile and may be created, deleted or moved on a frequent basis. The Nuage Networks VSAP tracks these objects using the object's Universal Unique Identifier (UUID), maintaining state, reachability, alarm correlations, statistics, and other data related to the object.

As virtual service objects move or are automatically deleted, the Nuage Networks VSAP maintains a log of persisted service objects so that historical routing information is not lost.

## Event retrieval log and correlation

Network events are stored in a history log that can be used for fault correlation. Operators can view a log of events related to a particular service or to a specific VM. They can filter the event list based on a specific time period or rewind from the current time.

The event log stores BGP-based network events. These events include reachability alarms and flapping occurrences for the BGP prefix. When operators retrieve events for a service, they can troubleshoot historical events by correlating SDN element events to BGP events gathered from the physical underlay network.

The event log provides access to two correlation features for BGP and SDN events:

- Root cause analysis
- Impact analysis

Operators can choose a historical event from a list and request root cause and impact analysis in the form of tree, as shown in the example below. The root of the tree represents the root cause event and the branches represent symptoms, or events, that occurred as a result of the root event.





### **BGP** event correlation

Correlating information from the SDN services layer and the physical network — provided by IGP protocols such as BGP — into a concise operational view improves visibility of the network and service impact as well as root cause analysis of the fault.

When correlating this information, the Nuage Networks VSAP processes BGP events, such as IGP Upstream Connection Up and Down events, similarly to vSwitch Controller Up and Down events in the SDN layer. The IGP monitor function, which is used to discover and log upstream router events, plays a key role in gathering the underlay information.

Where BGP prefix events affect the SDN-based services, the Nuage Networks VSAP correlates SDN-specific alarms based on the:

- Virtualized network events in the event log.
- Correlation for absent vPort or BGP prefix events.

In cases where a vPort or BGP prefix event is expected, but not present, the Nuage Networks VSAP raises an alarm.

With its comprehensive BGP support, the Nuage Networks VSAP provides the operational tools needed to troubleshoot BGP-related network issues.

The Route Monitor discovers and monitors BGP routing information, then consolidates data from the 7701 vCPAAs to provide an overview of the end-to-end network. Operations teams can, for example, monitor whether a change in the number of BGP routes could compromise network stability, or if key BGP routes are disappearing. For IP VPN routes, the Route Monitor flags a high rate of change for a set of virtual routing functions.

## Overlay and underlay fault correlation

The Nuage Networks VSAP overlay- and underway-aware correlation functions lead the industry in providing a physical and virtual network fault management framework.

In addition to the fault management rules provided as part of the Route Monitor, the Nuage Networks VSAP provides correlation rules that help operators monitor and troubleshoot virtual network and service objects. They can, for example, view impact analysis for moved or deleted VMs. Operators also benefit from flexible correlation rules and the ability to correlate specific alarms.

U.V.	SAP - Fault Managem	ent									User :	admin 🕂	
Tep Unifealth	y NES Alarm List	Top Pipblems Inte	o lector										
							26 🤨 289 💮 8	20 0 0	0.5	00	0.0	) = ?	
E + Alarm I	List Select Saves	Filter_ •								Show Root	Causes Only 🏾	R Q 10	
Severity	StelD	Site Name	Alarmed Object Type	Alarmed Object Name	Alarm Name		Probable Cause	Last Time Detocted	> General				
	1								> Severity				
major	35.227.229.125	qasim125	dctr.VirtualSwitchControlle	r vscori-t	VirtualServicesContr	olierDown	ControllerNotOperationallyUp	2016/02/29 17:40:23 01 -	> Acknowledg	oement:			
major	35.227.229.125	qasim125	detr.VirtualSwitch	alubr0	VirtuslSwitchDown		ControllerDowsOrPhysicalP 2016/02/29 17:40:22 86				kanuladoament Notas		
critical	35.227.229.47	qasim47	ospEinterface	Show impacts			InterfaceDown 2016/01/0511:56:4971			· Accioweogenetic notes			
critical	35.227.229.51	qasim\$1	lag.interface	Show Root Causes			lagDown	2016/02/02 14:51:27 1	Statistic     Description     The alarm is related when OperFlow assess to the virtual ewit     Remedial Action     Seemedial Action     Additional Text     Additional Text     Specific Problem				
critical	35.227.229.47	qasim47	ospfinterface	Show Object Impacts			InterfaceDown	2016/01/0511:56:4971					
major	35.227.229.155	sim155	equipment.PhysicalPort	These Object Inducts			inoperableEquipment	2016/02/29 13:37:32 01					
critical	35.227.229.46	qasim46	ospEinterface	show object Point Of Vi	ew		InterfaceDown	2016/01/05 11:56:46 8					
critical	35.227.229.46	qasim46	ospf.interface	Acknowledge Alarm(s)			InterfaceDown	2016/01/0511:56:46 88					
critical	35.227.229.46	qasim46	ospEinterface	Assign Severity			InterfaceDown	2016/01/0511:56:468					
critical	35.227.229.47	qasim47	ospf.interface	Assign Urgency			InterfaceDown	2016/02/02 14:49:34 7					
major	35.227.229.120	qasim120	equipment.PhysicalPort	Assign OLC State			InoperableEquipment	2016/01/05 11:18:25 71					
major	35.227.229.120	qasim120	equipment.PhysicalPort	Delete Alarm(c)			InoperableEquipment	2016/01/051118:231+					
major	35.227.229.46	qasim46	equipment.PhysicalPort	Clear Alastate)			InoperableEquipment	2016/01/0511:56:43 58					
major	35.227.229.120	gasim120	equipment.PhysicalPort	Casal Maritipy			InoperableEquipment	2016/01/051118:2571					
critical	35.227.229.155	sim155	bgp.Peer		ow	n:	connectionDown	2016/02/29 13:38:51 9					
major	35,227,229,120	gasim120	equipment.PhysicalPort	😫 Show Affected Object			InoperableEquipment	2016/01/0511:18:258					
major	35.227.229.120	qasim120	equipment.PhysicalPort	1 View Alarm(s) History			InoperableEquipment	2016/01/0511:18:257					
major	35.227.229.120	gasim120	equipment.PhysicalPort	View Objectis) Alarm His	20ry		InoperableEquipment	2016/01/051118:257					
major	35.227.229.120	qasim120	eculpment.PhysicalPort	View Current and History	kal Alarma Spacabot		InoperableEquipment	2016/01/05 11:18:23 1					
major	35,227,229,120	gasim120	equipment.PhysicalPort	Down in Convelation	121 00000000000000000000000000000000000		InoperableEquipment	2016/01/0511:18:231					
major	35.227.229.120	qasim120	equipment.PhysicalPort	oper in copy window			InoperableEquipment	2016/01/0511:18:2571					
Icro	35.227.229.125	qasim125	dctr.VirtualMachine	Demo_VM_L3_02	VirtualMachineDown	0	VirtualMachineShutDownOr	2016/02/29 17:40:22 9:					
major	35.227.229.120	cjasim120	eculpment.PhysicalPort	Port 1/2/1	EquipmentDown		inoperableEquipment	2016/01/05 11:18:25 7					
major	35.227.229.120	qasim120	equipment.PhysicalPort	Port 1/1/13	EquipmentDown		InoperableEquipment	2015/01/05 11:18:23 1	16				
major	35.227.229.120	qasim120	equipment.PhysicalPort	Port 1/2/55	EquipmentDown		inoperableEquipment:	2016/01/05 11:18:25 8					
major	35.227.229.120	qasim120	equipment.PhysicalPort	Port 1/2/18	EquipmentDown		InoperableEquipment	2016/01/05 11:18:25 71					
major	35.227.229.120	qasim120	equipment.PhysicalPort	Port 1/2/56	EquipmentDown		inoperableEquipment:	2016/01/05 11:18:25 8					
critical	35.227.229.51	qasim51	ospf.interface	system	InterfaceDown		InterfaceDown	2016/01/05 11:56:48 2					
major	35.227.229.120	cjasim120	eculpment.PhysicalPort	Port 1/1/30	EquipmentDown		InoperableEquipment	2016/01/0511:18:257/**					
A second second					1000		and a second						

FIGURE 7. The alarm list lets operators show impacts for specific alarms

#### FIGURE 8. Alarm impacts are visually represented to simplify troubleshooting



The Nuage Networks VSAP fault management framework includes rules for correlating:

- Service status alarms from virtualized service sites to virtual network components such as vSwitches, vPorts and VMs.
- Threshold-crossing alarms from virtualized service sites to the vPort.
- BGP prefix reachability alarms from IGP monitors to virtual network components.
- BGP prefix reachability alarms from virtual network components to virtualized service sites.

### Software Defined Wide Area Network support

The Nuage Networks VSAP provides assurance and debugging support for datacenter and SD-WAN applications. One of its key features is the ability to audit the configuration and connectivity for Nuage Networks 7850 Network Services Gateway (NSG) branch equipment.

The 7850 NSG is centrally managed with no local access to device configuration for security reasons. This means configuration audits are not a trivial task. As shown in the figure below, the Nuage Networks VSAP compares configuration parameters on the Virtualized Services Controller (VSC) with the values configured on the 7850 NSG to simplify audits.

FIGURE 9. The Nuage Networks VSAP simplifies configuration audits on branch equipment

VSAP - Service Navigator				User: edmin +
Q. VSD Organization Name   SRINB +				
VNS Tree	Statux : Socceeded Result :	62 mismatch(s) Found Last Audited : Wed Feb	17 \$7:10:57 #57 2016	Y. Q. 20
Image: Provide SPINE         Image: Provide SPINE <th>Croup By.  VPIS service: 7 Whotal St  Proves ACL  Proves ACL  Proves ACL  Proves ACL  Proves ACL  Proves ACH  Pro</th> <th>Attribute Name Attribute Name Attrib</th> <th>N/A Local Value N/A 7.3.7.77 224 223 Redirect TCP (6)</th> <th>Renota Value</th>	Croup By.  VPIS service: 7 Whotal St  Proves ACL  Proves ACL  Proves ACL  Proves ACL  Proves ACL  Proves ACH  Pro	Attribute Name Attribute Name Attrib	N/A Local Value N/A 7.3.7.77 224 223 Redirect TCP (6)	Renota Value
Run Audit	Auto Refreshing 2016/0	0/17 17:11:33 568 -08:00 GMT		Count: 52

## Statistics collection and plotting

The Nuage Networks VSAP performs on-demand or scheduled statistics collection for managed network elements, services and virtual network objects. These statistics can be used to monitor or troubleshoot a datacenter network, or to perform service level agreement (SLA) or billing functions. Statistics collection can be configured with policies that are distributed to specified network objects. Statistics are displayed in tabular or graphical format using the statistics plotter.

### Statistics collection

Network performance statistics are collected using SNMP to poll the network element management information base (MIB) tables. It collects:

- Performance statistics to provide information about physical equipment, routing and other network element properties. SNMP MIB statistics collection policies define performance statistics collection at the network element level or at the network object level.
- Accounting statistics to provide throughput information for queues that are associated with Service Access Points (SAPs), network ports and subscriber profiles. Accounting statistics policies can be defined for vPorts to monitor service, network or subscriber accounting statistics.
- Server performance statistics to monitor system functions and processes. Server performance statistics are based on Nuage Networks VSAP internal data, such as memory usage and alarm counters.
- BGP statistics using functionality from the Route Monitor. MIB statistics policies can be applied to the 7701 vCPAA to define the collection of specified statistics counters. BGP statistics can be plotted and stored using the statistics plotter. The Route Monitor raises BGP-specific threshold crossing alarms when thresholds are reached.

### Statistics plotting

All supported statistics types can be viewed in tabular or graphical format using historical or real-time data:

- Tables list specific values for historical data. Table data can be sorted, filtered and exported to files in different formats.
- Graphs can be used to identify trends and to display multiple statistics counters simultaneously. The statistics plotter graphs statistics from a specified time period or in real time.
- The statistics plotter can also plot ingress and egress statistics using calculated values. Plotted utilization statistics let operators view bandwidth usage on a specified port in tabular and graphical format.

## Summary

Datacenter and wide area network topologies can be complex, mixing technologies, transport methods, equipment types and vendors. Provisioning overlay services across these networks introduces new challenges to provide effective monitoring and assurance.

Nuage Networks VSAP is based on robust technologies that have been deployed in some of the world's largest and most advanced networks for mobile, residential, enterprise and converged services for more than 10 years. As a result, the Nuage Networks VSAP is uniquely positioned to provide a single solution for service assurance across multitechnology, multilayer and multivendor networks.

The Nuage Networks VSAP addresses the challenges that network operators face when SDN services are deployed in the datacenter and when they are extended across the wide area network. The solution correlates SDN-based overlay services to the underlying physical network, giving network operators better visibility, monitoring and troubleshooting capabilities for SDN services.

## Abbreviations

API	application programming interface
BGP	Border Gateway Protocol
BRMS	Business Rules Management System
CSPF	Constrained Shortest Path First
EVPN	Ethernet Virtual Private Network
FCAPS	fault configuration assurance performance security
IGP	Interior Gateway Protocol
IP	Internet Protocol
MIB	management information base
NSG	Network Services Gateway
OAM	operations and maintenance
PE	Provider Edge
SAP	Service Access Point
SDN	Software Defined Network
SD-WAN	Software Defined Wide Area Network
SLA	service level agreement
SNMP	Simple Network Management Protocol
SPF	Shortest Path First
SR OS	Service Router Operating System
UUID	Universal Unique Identifier
vCPAA	virtualized Control Plane Assurance Appliance
VM	virtual machine
vNode	virtual node
VPN	virtual private network
vPort	virtual port
VRS	Virtual Routing and Switching
VSA	Virtualized Services Aggregator
VSAP	Virtualized Services Assurance Platform
VSC	Virtualized Services Controller
VSD	Virtualized Services Directory
VSG	Virtualized Services Gateway
VSP	Virtualized Services Platform
vSwitch	virtual switch
WAN	wide area network



www.nuagenetworks.net Nuage Networks and the Nuage Networks logo are trademarks of the Nokia group of companies. Nokia is a registered trademark of Nokia Corporation. Other product and company names mentioned herein may be trademarks or trade names of their respective owners. PR1603018526EN (March) © Nokia 2016